
 
FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING / PUBLIC HEARING 

  

AGENDA 
 
 FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 
MONDAY, MARCH 28, 2022 990 E. MISSION RD., FALLBROOK, CA 92028 
4:00 P.M. PHONE:  (760) 728-1125 

 
THIS MEETING WILL BE HELD PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54953(e)(1)(A), WHICH WAIVES 

CERTAIN BROWN ACT TELECONFERENCING REQUIREMENTS DURING A PROCLAIMED STATE OF 
EMERGENCY WHEN STATE OR LOCAL OFFICIALS HAVE IMPOSED OR RECOMMENDED MEASURES TO 
PROMOTE SOCIAL DISTANCING, AND ALLOWS SOME OR ALL OF THE MEMBERS OF THE FALLBROOK 

PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS TO ATTEND THIS MEETING TELEPHONICALLY OR VIA 
VIDEO CONFERENCE. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WHO DO NOT WISH TO ATTEND IN PERSON ARE 

ENCOURAGED TO PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING VIA WEB CONFERENCE USING THE BELOW CALL-IN AND 
WEBLINK INFORMATION. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC MAY ALSO PARTICIPATE IN THIS MEETING BY 

ATTENDING IN PERSON AT THE DISTRICT OFFICE LOCATED AT 990 E. MISSION RD., FALLBROOK, CA 92028. 
 

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82003172211?pwd=UU10YWltMkVwWGVaUFNkQnA2bHA4Zz09 
MEETING ID:  820 0317 2211 
AUDIO PASSCODE:  363170 

 
Dial by your location 

+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston); +1 720 707 2699 US (Denver); +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma);  
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago); +1 646 558 8656 US (New York); +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 

Find your local number: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kb7TPD4AEt  
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  Members of the public may submit public comments and comments on agenda items in one of 

the following ways: 
 
SUBMIT COMMENTS BEFORE THE MEETING:  

 By emailing to our Board Secretary at leckert@fpud.com  

 By mailing to the District Offices at 990 E. Mission Rd., Fallbrook, CA 92028 

 By depositing them in the District’s Payment Drop Box located at 990 E. Mission Rd., Fallbrook, CA 92028  
 

All comments submitted before the meeting by whatever means must be received at least 1 hour in advance of the 
meeting. All comments will be read to the Board during the appropriate portion of the meeting. Please keep any written 
comments to 3 minutes.   
 
REMOTELY MAKE COMMENTS DURING THE MEETING: The Board President will inquire prior to Board discussion 

if there are any comments from the public on each item. 

 Via Zoom Webinar go to the “Participants List,” hover over your name and click on “raise hand.” This will notify 
the moderator that you wish to speak during oral communication or during a specific item on the agenda.  

 Via phone, you can raise your hand by pressing *9 to notify the moderator that you wish to speak during the 
current item. 
MAKE IN-PERSON COMMENTS DURING THE MEETING: The Board President will inquire prior to Board discussion 

if there are any comments from the public on each item, at which time members of the public attending in person may 
make comments. 
 
THESE PUBLIC COMMENT PROCEDURES SUPERSEDE THE DISTRICT’S STANDARD PUBLIC COMMENT 
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES TO THE CONTRARY. 
 

If you have a disability and need an accommodation to participate in the meeting, please call the Secretary 
at (760) 999-2704 for assistance so the necessary arrangements can be made.   

01

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82003172211?pwd=UU10YWltMkVwWGVaUFNkQnA2bHA4Zz09
https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kb7TPD4AEt
mailto:leckert@fpud.com


Fallbrook Public Utility District 
Regular Board Meeting / Public Hearing 
Agenda Page 2 March 28, 2022 

 
I. PRELIMINARY FUNCTIONS 
 
CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL / ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 

A. CONSIDER FINDINGS TO CONTINUE HOLDING REMOTE/ 
TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS PURSUANT TO ASSEMBLY BILL 361 

  
Recommendation:  
1. That the FPUD Board of Directors make the following findings by majority vote: 

a. The Governor-declared COVID-19 State of Emergency remains in 
effect and the Board of Directors has reconsidered the circumstances 
of the COVID-19 State of Emergency; and 

b. State or local officials continue to impose or recommend measures to 
promote social distancing. 

2. That the FPUD Board of Directors determine that, for the next thirty (30) days, 
the meetings of the Board and committees shall be held pursuant to the 
provisions of Government Code section 54953(e), allowing legislative body 
members and members of the public to participate in meetings remotely in 
accordance with that section. 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ADDITIONS TO AGENDA PER GC § 54954.2(b) 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
Members of the public are invited to address the Board of Directors on any item that is 
within the subject matter jurisdiction of the legislative body.  The Board President may 
limit comments to three (3) minutes. 
 

B. NEW EMPLOYEE ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 1. Tyrese Powell-Slotterbeck, Plant Operator II 

 
II. CONSENT CALENDAR -------------------------------------------------------- (ITEMS C – D) 

All items appearing on the Consent Calendar may be disposed of by a single 
motion.  Items shall be removed from the Consent Calendar if any member of the 
Board of Directors or the public requests removal prior to a vote on a motion to 
approve the items.  Such items shall be considered separately for action by the 
Board.  
 
C. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. February 28, 2022 Regular Board Meeting/Public Hearing 
 

02



Fallbrook Public Utility District 
Regular Board Meeting / Public Hearing 
Agenda Page 3 March 28, 2022 

 
Recommendation:  The Board approve the minutes of the aforementioned meeting 
of the Board of Directors of the Fallbrook Public Utility District.  
 
D. CONSIDER ADVANCE APPROVAL TO ATTEND MEETINGS 
 

 Recommendation: That the Board authorize and approve, in advance, Directors' 
attendance to the Southern California Water Coalition Quarterly Luncheon on April 
22, 2022 in Temecula, California. 
 

III. INFORMATION ------------------------------------------------------------------- (ITEMS E – G) 
 
 E.  FINANCIAL PLAN UPDATE 
 

Presented by: Dave Shank, Assistant General Manager/CFO 
 
 F.  100TH ANNIVERSARY EVENT UPDATE 
 

Presented by: Noelle Denke, Public Affairs Specialist 
 
 G. SANTA MARGARITA GROUNDWATER TREATMENT PLANT UPDATE 
 

Presented by: Devin Casteel, System Operations Supervisor 
 
IV. PUBLIC HEARING ---------------------------------------------------------------------- (ITEM H) 
 

H. PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING REDISTRICTING OF DIVISION 
BOUNDARIES FOR FPUD BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
Recommendation:  
1. Receive a report from District staff on the redistricting proposal and permissible 

criteria to be considered to redraw division boundaries; 
2. Review draft maps and provide direction to prepare revised maps, if 

appropriate, to be considered at the next public hearing; and  
3. Conduct a public hearing to receive public input on division boundaries. 

V. ORAL/WRITTEN REPORTS----------------------------------------------------- (ITEMS 1–8)  
 

1. General Counsel 
2. SDCWA Representative Report 
3. General Manager  

a. Engineering and Operations Report 
4. Assistant General Manager/Chief Financial Officer 

a. Financial Summary Report 
b. Treasurer’s Report 
c. Budget Status Report 

03



Fallbrook Public Utility District 
Regular Board Meeting / Public Hearing 
Agenda Page 4 March 28, 2022 

 
d. Warrant List 

5. Public Affairs Specialist 
6. Notice of Approval of Per Diem for Meetings Attended 

a. Notification of Approval for Directors’ Attendance at a meeting with Jo 
MacKenzie on February 23, 2022.   

b. Notification of Approval for Directors’ Attendance at a meeting with 
Supervisor Desmond on March 3, 2022.  

c. Notification of Approval for Directors’ Attendance at San Diego County 
Local Agency Formation Commission meeting on March 7, 2022.  

7. Director Comments/Reports on Meetings Attended 
8. Miscellaneous 

 
ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 
 
VI. CLOSED SESSION---------------------------------------------------------------(ITEMS 1 – 3) 
 

1. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS PURSUANT TO 
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54957.6: 

  
Agency Designated Negotiators:  Jack Bebee, General Manager; Lisa 
Chaffin, Human Resources Manager 

  
Employee Organizations:  Fallbrook Public Utility District Employees’ 
Association; Fallbrook Management Employees’ Association 
 

2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
SIGNIFICANT EXPOSURE TO LITIGATION PURSUANT TO 
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.9 (d)(2) 

 
One (1) Potential Case 

 
3. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 

PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.9 (d)(1): 
 

Name of Case: Todd Lange v. Fallbrook Public Utility District, San Diego 
Co. Sup. Ct. (North County) Case No 37-2020-00046705-CU-PT-NC 

 
RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 
 
REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION (As Necessary) 
 
VII. ADJOURNMENT OF MEETING 

 
  

04



Fallbrook Public Utility District 
Regular Board Meeting / Public Hearing 
Agenda Page 5 March 28, 2022 

 
* * * * * 

 
DECLARATION OF POSTING 

 
 I, Lauren Eckert, Executive Assistant/Board Secretary of the Board of Directors of 
the Fallbrook Public Utility District, do hereby declare that I posted a copy of the foregoing 
agenda in the glass case at the entrance of the District Office located at 990 East Mission 
Road, Fallbrook, California, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting in accordance with 
Government Code § 54954.2(a).   
 
 I, Lauren Eckert, further declare under penalty of perjury and under the laws of the 
State of California that the foregoing is true and correct.   
 
 
March 23, 2022  /s/ Lauren Eckert  
Dated / Fallbrook, CA  Executive Assistant/Board Secretary 

05



A 
M E M O 

 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM: Paula de Sousa, General Counsel 
DATE: March 28, 2022 
SUBJECT: Findings to Continue Holding Remote/Teleconference Committee Meetings 

Pursuant to Assembly Bill 361 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Purpose 
 
Consider findings necessary to continue holding remote/teleconference meetings 
pursuant to Assembly Bill 361. 
 
Summary 
 
As more fully described in the Board memo for the October 25, 2021 Board of Directors 
meeting related to AB 361, the State of California has adopted legislation (AB 361), which 
allows public agencies to hold fully or partially virtual meetings under certain 
circumstances without being required to follow certain standard Brown Act 
teleconferencing requirements.  
 
Under AB 361, a legislative body holding a fully or partially virtual meeting pursuant to AB 
361 must make certain findings at least every thirty (30) days in order to continue holding 
such meetings.  Because the Board of Directors last made the required findings on behalf 
of the Board and all FPUD Committees more than 30 days ago, the Board of Directors is 
required to make the findings to proceed with holding this meeting pursuant to AB 361.  
The findings would remain in effect for the Board of Directors for the next 30 days. 
 
If the Board of Directors desires to hold the meeting in a manner allowing remote 
participation pursuant to AB 361, the Board must reconsider the COVID-19 State of 
Emergency, find that the proclaimed COVID-19 State of Emergency still exists, and find 
either of the following: (1) that state or local officials continue to impose or recommend 
measures to promote social distancing, or (2) that as a result of the COVID-19 emergency, 
meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees.  
Based on the continued COVID-19 State of Emergency and required or recommended 
social distancing measures, as further described in the October 25, 2021 Board memo, 
the Board can make the required findings. 
 
If the Board does not make the required findings, any Board members participating 
remotely would not be able to participate in the rest of the meeting, which may deprive the 
Board of a quorum and result in meeting cancellation.  
 
Recommended Actions 
 

1. That the FPUD Board of Directors make the following findings by majority vote: 

06



a. The Governor-declared COVID-19 State of Emergency remains in effect 
and the Board of Directors has reconsidered the circumstances of the 
COVID-19 State of Emergency; and 

b. State or local officials continue to impose or recommend measures to 
promote social distancing. 

2. That the FPUD Board of Directors determine that, for the next thirty (30) days, the 
meetings of the Board and Committees shall be held pursuant to the provisions of 
Government Code section 54953(e), allowing legislative body members and 
members of the public to participate in meetings remotely in accordance with that 
section. 

07



B 

This page intentionally left blank. 

08



C 
M E M O 

 

 

TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM: Lauren Eckert, Executive Assistant/Board Secretary 
DATE: March 28, 2022 
SUBJECT: Approval of Minutes 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommended Action 
 
That the Board approve the minutes of the following meeting of the Board of Directors 
of the Fallbrook Public Utility District: 
 
1. February 28, 2022 Regular Meeting / Public Hearing 
 

 

 

 

 

  

09



 
FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING / PUBLIC HEARING 

 
MINUTES 

 
 FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 28, 2022 990 E. MISSION RD., FALLBROOK, CA 92028 
4:00 P.M. PHONE:  (760) 728-1125 

 
I. PRELIMINARY FUNCTIONS 
 
CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL / ESTABLISH A QUORUM 

 
President Baxter called the February Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of 

the Fallbrook Public Utility District to order at 4:00 p.m. President Baxter deferred to 
General Counsel de Sousa’s colleague, Victoria Hester, who served as General Counsel 
for this meeting until Ms. de Sousa was able to join the meeting, to make the following 
statements on the record regarding the proceedings for this meeting: 

 
General Counsel Hester announced, for the record that, pursuant to the state of 

emergency declared by Governor Newsom, and in order to promote social distancing 
during the evolving COVID-19 pandemic, this meeting was being conducted by web and 
teleconference pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e)(1)(A), which waives 
certain teleconferencing requirements in certain circumstances. She noted the first item 
on the agenda pertained to Board action to make the required findings pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54953(e). 
 

General Counsel Hester also announced the agenda provided notice that 
members of the public may participate in this meeting by attending in person, and that 
members of the public who do not wish to attend in person were encouraged to participate 
in the Board meeting electronically using the call-in and weblink information included on 
the agenda.  Members of the public participating remotely may provide general public 
comments and comments on agenda items in real time by requesting to speak using the 
“Raise Hand” function on Zoom or, if they were participating by phone, by pressing *9 to 
raise their hand.  In addition, the agenda provided notice to members of the public on how 
they may submit comments in advance of the meeting to be read at the appropriate 
portion of the meeting (up to a limit of 3 minutes per comment). There were no written 
public comments submitted in advance of the meeting, for general public comment or for 
any agenda items. 
 

General Counsel Hester announced that President Baxter would ask the Board 
Secretary if there were any members of the public who had submitted written comments 
in advance of the meeting, or who wished to make comments on the item either in person 
or through Zoom webinar or Zoom teleconference. After public comments, President 

10



Fallbrook Public Utility District 
Regular Board Meeting / Public Hearing 
Minutes Page 2 February 28, 2022 

 
Baxter would then call on staff to make a presentation for the next item on the agenda. 
After the presentation was made, to avoid everyone speaking at once, President Baxter 
would then call on each Director to see if there were questions for staff regarding their 
presentation. After the round of questions, President Baxter would then ask for a motion 
and request that each Director identify themselves when making a motion or seconding 
a motion. Next, President Baxter would call on each Director to see if there were any 
comments. General Counsel de Sousa announced, if there were any Directors 
participating remotely, which there were, all votes would be done by roll call.   

 
A quorum was established, and attendance was as follows:   

 
Board of Directors 
 
Present: Dave Baxter, Member/ President 
 Charley Wolk, Member/Vice President 
 Ken Endter, Member 
 Jennifer DeMeo, Member 
 Don McDougal, Member 
   
Absent: None 
  
General Counsel/District Staff 
 
Present: Jack Bebee, General Manager 
 Victoria Hester, Acting General Counsel 
 Paul de Sousa, General Counsel (arrived at 5:21 p.m. via Zoom) 
 Dave Shank, Assistant General Manager/CFO 
 Nick Cannata, Utility Worker I 
 Devin Casteel, Systems Operations Supervisor 
 Lisa Chaffin, Human Resources Manager 
 Aaron Cook, Engineering Manager 
 Mick Cothran, Engineering Technician  
 Noelle Denke, Public Affairs Specialist 
 Soleil Develle, Engineering Technician II 
 Kyle Drake, Collections Supervisor 
 Kerry Mehrens, Equipment Mechanic 
 Steve Stone, Field Services Manager 
 Owni Toma, Chief Plant Operator 
 Steve Wuerth, SCADA, Electrical & Maintenance Supervisor 
 Lauren Eckert, Executive Assistant/Board Secretary 
 
Also present were others, including, but not limited to: Craig Balben, Leticia Maldonado-
Stamos, Rebekah Nye, Tom Frew, Liz Ramos, Kathy Ramirez, Ricardo Favela, Cynthia 
Young, Stephani Baxter, and Stephanie Smith 
 

11



Fallbrook Public Utility District 
Regular Board Meeting / Public Hearing 
Minutes Page 3 February 28, 2022 

 
A. CONSIDER FINDINGS TO CONTINUE HOLDING REMOTE/ 

TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS PURSUANT TO ASSEMBLY BILL 361 
  

Recommendation:  
1. That the FPUD Board of Directors make the following findings by majority vote: 

a. The Governor-declared COVID-19 State of Emergency remains in 
effect and the Board of Directors has reconsidered the circumstances 
of the COVID-19 State of Emergency; and 

b. State or local officials continue to impose or recommend measures to 
promote social distancing. 

2. That the FPUD Board of Directors determine that, for the next thirty (30) days, 
the meetings of the Board and committees shall be held pursuant to the 
provisions of Government Code section 54953(e), allowing legislative body 
members and members of the public to participate in meetings remotely in 
accordance with that section. 

 
There were no public comments on agenda item A. 

 
MOTION: Vice President Wolk moved to find that the Governor-declared 

COVID-19 State of Emergency remains in effect and the Board of 
Directors has reconsidered the circumstances of the COVID-19 
State of Emergency; and State or local officials continue to impose 
or recommend measures to promote social distancing and that 
meetings of the Board of Directors and Committees shall be held 
pursuant to provisions of the Government Code section 54953(e), 
allowing legislative body members and members of the public to 
participate in meetings remotely in accordance with that section; 
Director McDougal seconded.  Motion passed; VOTE:  

 
AYES:  Directors Baxter, DeMeo, Endter, McDougal and Wolk 
NOES: None 
ABSTAIN: None 

  ABSENT:  None 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
  President Baxter led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
ADDITIONS TO AGENDA PER GC § 54954.2(b) 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

MOTION: Vice President Wolk moved to approve the agenda as presented; 
Director McDougal seconded.  Motion carried; VOTE: 

 

12



Fallbrook Public Utility District 
Regular Board Meeting / Public Hearing 
Minutes Page 4 February 28, 2022 

 
 AYES:  Directors Baxter, DeMeo, Endter, McDougal, and Wolk 
 NOES: None 
 ABSTAIN: None 
 ABSENT: None 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
Members of the public are invited to address the Board of Directors on any item that is 
within the subject matter jurisdiction of the legislative body.  The Board President may 
limit comments to three (3) minutes. 
 
 Leticia Maldonado-Stamos stepped to the podium to inquire if the three minute 
limit for public comments would still be in affect during the scheduled public hearing. 
President Baxter agreed to extend the public comment time limit to five minutes.  
 

B. 2021 EMPLOYEE OF THE YEAR PLAQUE PRESENTATION 
 
  There were no public comments on agenda item B. 
 

 The Board presented Soleil Develle with a plaque for receiving the 2021 
Employee of the Year award. A photo was taken. 

  
 C. EMPLOYEE OF THE QUARTER FEBRUARY 2022 

1. Devin Casteel 
 
  There were no public comments on agenda item C. 
 

 The Board recognized Devin Casteel for being selected as Employee of the 
Quarter for February 2022.  

 
 D. YEARS OF SERVICE 
  1. Kerry Mehrens – 15 years  
 
  There were no public comments on agenda item D. 
 

 The Board recognized Kerry Mehrens for his 15 years of service to the 
District.  

 
 E. NEW EMPLOYEE ANNOUNCEMENTS 
  1. Nick Cannata, Utility Worker I 
 
  There were no public comments on agenda item E. 
 
  The Board welcomed Nick Cannata as Utility Worker I.  
 
II. CONSENT CALENDAR -------------------------------------------------------- (ITEMS F – G) 

13



Fallbrook Public Utility District 
Regular Board Meeting / Public Hearing 
Minutes Page 5 February 28, 2022 

 
All items appearing on the Consent Calendar may be disposed of by a single 
motion.  Items shall be removed from the Consent Calendar if any member of the 
Board of Directors or the public requests removal prior to a vote on a motion to 
approve the items.  Such items shall be considered separately for action by the 
Board.  
 
 There were no public comments on Consent Calendar items.  
 
F. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. January 24, 2022 Regular Board Meeting 
 

Recommendation:  The Board approve the minutes of the aforementioned meeting 
of the Board of Directors of the Fallbrook Public Utility District.  
 
G. CONSIDER ADVANCE APPROVAL TO ATTEND MEETINGS 
 

 Recommendation: That the Board authorize and approve, in advance, Directors' 
attendance to the California Special Districts Association’s 2022 Special District 
Leadership Academy Conference, April 3–April 6, 2022, in San Diego, California. 

 
 

MOTION: Director Endter moved to approve the Consent Calendar as 
presented; Director McDougal seconded.  Motion carried; VOTE: 

 
 AYES:  Directors Baxter, DeMeo, Endter, McDougal, and Wolk 
 NOES: None 
 ABSTAIN: None 
 ABSENT: None 
 

 
III. ACTION / DISCUSSION CALENDAR --------------------------------------(ITEMS H – J) 
 

H. CONSIDER CUSTOMER REQUEST FOR BILL ADJUSTMENT – 109 DEL 
SURENO 

 
Recommendation: In the past, the Board has directed staff to work with the 
customer to develop a payment plan in these situations.  Staff will support Board 
direction on this item. 

 
 Rebekah Nye addressed the Board to request assistance on a past due 
balance she inherited from a previous owner.  
 
 Vice President Wolk asked why the State program for past due account was 
not being utilized for this. AGM/CFO Shank explained the State arrearage program 
was set up to fund a period of time, and in that period the funds could be applied 
towards past due bills. However, this past due amount was transferred to a new 

14



Fallbrook Public Utility District 
Regular Board Meeting / Public Hearing 
Minutes Page 6 February 28, 2022 

 
account, and subsequently the old account was closed. The past due amount was 
therefore not submitted to the State for the past due arrearage program. General 
Manager Bebee asked how much would have qualified for that program. 
AGM/CFO Shank responded that of the past due water charges, $1,236.73 would 
have qualified. The program did not cover sewer charges.  
 
 Director McDougal suggested the process the District has in place be 
revisited. He suggested the District come up with another resolution for issues like 
this that arise, where a new customer is being held responsible for an old 
customer’s past due balance.  
 
 Vice President Wolk was concerned about setting a precedent and 
specifically asked the record reflect that the previous owner had filed bankruptcy, 
and the new owner would be unable to take him to court. Additionally, the previous 
owner did not submit an application for assistance with the past due balance. 
President Baxter agreed this was a unique circumstance and the District needed 
to be careful not to set a precedent.  
 
MOTION: Director McDougal moved to waive the past due fees based on the 

background and supporting documentation, adding this was a one-
time transaction and would not set a precedent; Director DeMeo 
seconded.  Motion carried; VOTE: 

 
 AYES:  Directors Baxter, DeMeo, Endter, McDougal, and Wolk 
 NOES: None 
 ABSTAIN: None 
 ABSENT: None 
 

I. CONSIDER CALIFORNIA SPECIAL DISTRICTS ASSOCIATION BOARD 
OF DIRECTORS CALL FOR NOMINATIONS – SEAT B  

 
Recommendation:  Staff supports the Board’s direction. 
 
 There were no public comments on agenda item I.  
 

General Manager Bebee explained there was a call for nominations for Seat 
B of the CSDA Southern Network and asked the Board if they wanted to nominate 
anyone for this seat.  
 

Director Endter announced he would be interested in running for the CSDA 
Board of Directors – Seat B.  
 
MOTION: Director McDougal moved to nominate Director Ken Endter for the 

California Special Districts Association Board of Directors – Seat B 

15



Fallbrook Public Utility District 
Regular Board Meeting / Public Hearing 
Minutes Page 7 February 28, 2022 

 
of the Southern Network; Director DeMeo seconded.  Motion carried; 
VOTE: 

 
 AYES:  Directors Baxter, DeMeo, Endter, McDougal, and Wolk 
 NOES: None 
 ABSTAIN: None  
 ABSENT: None 

 
J. CONSIDER REQUEST FOR APPROVAL TO AWARD ONE-TIME PAVING 

PROJECT TO PETERS PAVING AND GRADING 
 
Recommendation: That the Board approve a one-time paving project to Peters 
Paving and Grading for $99,500.00. 
 
 There were no public comments on agenda item J.  
 

Vice President Wolk asked if Peters Paving and Grading would bill us by 
the job or wait until the entire project was completed. General Manager Bebee 
explained they would most likely bill monthly.  

 
MOTION: Director McDougal moved to approve a one-time paving project to 

Peters Paving and Grading for $99,500.00; Director Endter 
seconded.  Motion carried; VOTE: 

 
 AYES:  Directors Baxter, DeMeo, Endter, McDougal, and Wolk 
 NOES: None 
 ABSTAIN: None  
 ABSENT: None 

 
 

IV. INFORMATION --------------------------------------------------------------------------- (ITEM K) 
 

K. ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
 

Presented by: Aaron Cook, Engineering Manager 
Steve Stone, Field Services Manager 
 

 There were no public comments on agenda item K.  
 

Staff presented a slideshow summarizing the key performance indicators 
for the engineering, system operations, collection, construction/maintenance, and 
system service departments.   

 

16



Fallbrook Public Utility District 
Regular Board Meeting / Public Hearing 
Minutes Page 8 February 28, 2022 

 
Vice President Wolk asked the criteria for issuing work orders. General 

Manager Bebee explained the bulk of the work orders were for preventative 
maintenance.  

 
V. PUBLIC HEARINGS ------------------------------------------------------------ (ITEMS L – M) 
 

L. POTENTIAL INCREASE IN COMPENSATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS (ADMINISTRATIVE CODE SECTION 2.12); 
ORDINANCE NO. 351  

 
Recommendation:  Hold the public hearing and consider adoption of Ordinance 
No. 351, to increase Board compensation from $115.76 to $121.55 for each day’s 
service to the District and to update Section 2.12 of the District’s Administrative 
Code to reflect the updated amount. 
 

General Manager Bebee announced that after following the necessary 
public notification procedures, the District’s Governing Board would be holding a 
public hearing to receive public comments prior to its consideration of Ordinance 
No. 351, related to increasing Board compensation from $115.76 to $121.55 per 
meeting.  

 
General Counsel Hester announced the Board will conduct a public hearing 

to provide an opportunity for members of the public to address the Board 
concerning Ordinance No. 351.  

 
At 5:05 p.m., President Baxter opened the Public Hearing to receive public 

comments on agenda item L.  
 
Leticia Maldonado-Stamos stepped to the podium to say that $121.55 for 

the work the Board does to serve the community was well worth the money the 
taxpayers pay. 

 
Hearing no additional public comments, President Baxter closed the Public 

Hearing at 5:07 p.m. 
 
MOTION: Director McDougal moved to adopt Ordinance No. 351, to increase 

Board compensation from $115.76 to $121.55 for each day’s service 
to the District and to update Section 2.12 of the District’s 
Administrative Code to reflect the updated amount; Director Endter 
seconded.  Motion carried; VOTE: 

 
 AYES:  Directors Baxter, DeMeo, Endter, McDougal and Wolk 
  NOES: None 
  ABSTAIN: None 
  ABSENT: None 

17



Fallbrook Public Utility District 
Regular Board Meeting / Public Hearing 
Minutes Page 9 February 28, 2022 

 
M. PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING REDISTRICTING OF DIVISION 

BOUNDARIES FOR FPUD BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
Recommendation:  
1. Receive a report from District staff on the redistricting proposal and  

permissible criteria to be considered to redraw division boundaries; 
2. Conduct a public hearing to receive public input on division boundaries; and 
3. Provide direction to staff (if any) regarding the redistricting proposal to be  

considered at the next public hearing. 

General Manager Bebee announced that after following the necessary 
public notification procedures, the District’s Governing Board would be holding a 
public hearing as part of the redistricting process to receive public input on 
revisions to the District’s division boundaries.  

 
Engineering Manager Cook presented a slideshow which provided an 

overview of the redistricting process.  
 
General Manager Bebee explained the District went through a redistricting 

process in 2016, in coordination and acceptance with MALDEF at that time.  
 
General Counsel Hester announced the Board will conduct a public hearing 

to provide an opportunity for members of the public to address the Board 
concerning the redistricting proposal and division boundaries.  

 
At 5:13 p.m., President Baxter opened the Public Hearing to receive public 

comments on agenda item M.  
 
Leticia Maldonado-Stamos stepped to the podium to address the Board, 

explaining she was an active member of the community and VOCES de Fallbrook. 
She reported that FPUD’s Board only underwent the transition from at-large to by-
division as the result of a lawsuit ruled against FPUD in 2015, which found the 
District was in violation of the voting rights of Latinos by holding at-large elections. 
She noted that equal population WAS important as it relates to legal consideration, 
but that communities of interest would be the next most important consideration. 
She went on to say that leaving the current maps as is was not in the best interest 
of Fallbrook in general, or the Latino population. She believed Division 3 should be 
made stronger, not weaker, and suggested modifications could be made to bring 
the FPUD Districts more in line with each other, population wise. She also 
mentioned there was a disadvantage associated with not being able to access map 
files, demographic data, and historical records. She suggested making those 
interactive tools available to better engage the public in this process. She also 
requested the District schedule one additional public hearing and a community 
workshop to come together as a community to fully collaborate in creating a fair 
map.  

18



Fallbrook Public Utility District 
Regular Board Meeting / Public Hearing 
Minutes Page 10 February 28, 2022 

 
Tom Frew stepped to the podium to address the Board and recommended 

taking South Alturas Road within District 5 and including it in District 3. He noted 
District 5 was the largest, and District 3 was the smallest. He suggested making 
that adjustment would make those Districts more equal, as there was a community 
of interest being split by having boundaries going east and west instead of north 
and south, thus splitting their voting power. 

 
Ricardo Favela addressed the Board via Zoom to echo what Ms. 

Maldonado-Stamos suggested, that an additional community workshop would be 
helpful. He suggested it would be beneficial to look at how the data impacts 
communities on the ground versus from a birds eye view. He explained there was 
a very large community on South Alturas Road near the Community Garden that 
was being left out of the Downtown District.   

 
Cynthia Young addressed the Board via Zoom requesting detailed maps be 

made available for the public to have an accurate review of the districts. She also 
did not think there was a disadvantage in maximizing the voting power of the Latino 
FPUD customers She also agreed that the suggestion of adding South Alturas to 
District 3 made sense.  

 
Hearing no additional public comments, President Baxter closed the Public 

Hearing at 5:26 p.m. 
 
Board discussion ensued, and it was ultimately decided that District staff 

would schedule a public workshop to further work with members of the public on 
the redistricting process. This workshop would allow staff and members of the 
public to look at the maps in greater detail and allow additional data and maps be 
brought to the Board for consideration at the next Board meeting and public 
hearing.  

 
VI. ORAL/WRITTEN REPORTS----------------------------------------------------- (ITEMS 1–8)  
 

 There were no public comments on oral/written reports.  
 
1. General Counsel 

 General Counsel de Sousa reminded the Board it was Form 700 annual 
filing time. She also announced the legislative deadline for all bills to be 
considered was February 18th. She thought there would be a lot more 
substantive bills.    

2. SDCWA Representative Report 

 General Manager Bebee provided an overview of the written report 
included in the packet.  

3. General Manager  
a. Engineering and Operations Report 

4. Assistant General Manager/Chief Financial Officer 

19



Fallbrook Public Utility District 
Regular Board Meeting / Public Hearing 
Minutes Page 11 February 28, 2022 

 
a. Financial Summary Report 
b. Treasurer’s Report 
c. Budget Status Report 
d. Warrant List 

 AGM/CFO Shank provided an overview of the written reports included 
in the packet.  

5. Public Affairs Specialist 

 Public Affairs Specialist Denke reported she has been working on the 
100th Anniversary event. She also showed the Board a resolution the 
District received from Marie Waldron’s office for the Santa Margarita 
Conjunctive Use Project.  

6. Notice of Approval of Per Diem for Meetings Attended 
7. Director Comments/Reports on Meetings Attended 

 Director DeMeo provided an overview of the written Directors’ reports 
she submitted that were included in the packet.  

8. Miscellaneous 
 
ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 
 

General Counsel de Sousa announced the Board would be going into Closed 
Session and that members of the public participating via web or teleconference were 
welcome to continue to stay on the line while the Board was in Closed Session, however 
they would only hear silence. Following Closed Session and prior to adjournment, an oral 
announcement of reportable action, should there be any, would be made to the public on 
the teleconference line. 
 
 There were no public comments on Closed Session Items. 
 

The Board of Directors adjourned to Closed Session at 6:04 p.m. following an oral 
announcement by General Counsel de Sousa of Closed Session Items V.1 and 2.  
 
 
VII. CLOSED SESSION ---------------------------------------------------------------(ITEMS 1–2) 
 

1. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS PURSUANT TO 
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54957.6: 

  
Agency Designated Negotiators:  Jack Bebee, General Manager; Lisa 
Chaffin, Human Resources Manager 

  
Employee Organizations:  Fallbrook Public Utility District Employees’ 
Association; Fallbrook Management Employees’ Association 
 

20



Fallbrook Public Utility District 
Regular Board Meeting / Public Hearing 
Minutes Page 12 February 28, 2022 

 
2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

SIGNIFICANT EXPOSURE TO LITIGATION PURSUANT TO 
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.9 (d)(2) 

 
One (1) Potential Case 

 
RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 
 

The Board came out of Closed Session and reconvened to Open Session at 6:45 
p.m. 
 
REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION (As necessary) 
 

There was no reportable action taken in Closed Session.  
 

 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT OF MEETING 
 

There being no further business to discuss, the February Regular Meeting of the 
Board of Directors of the Fallbrook Public Utility District was adjourned at 6:46 p.m. 
 
 
   
 President, Board of Directors 
ATTEST: 
 
  
Secretary, Board of Directors 
 

21



D 
M E M O 

 

 

TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM: Lauren Eckert, Executive Assistant/Board Secretary 
DATE: March 28, 2022 
SUBJECT: Consider Advance Approval to Attend Meetings 
 
 
Purpose 
 
To authorize Directors’ attendance, travel, and expenses to events requiring approval 
by the Board of Directors in advance.   
 
Summary 
 
Article 2 of the Administrative Code prescribes that compensation for attendance and 
reimbursement for expenses at occasions, events, or meetings related to District 
business, other than those listed in section 2.12, shall be determined by the Board of 
Directors, in advance, on a case-by-case basis.   
 
The request is for advance approval to the following event:  

 
1. Southern California Water Coalition Quarterly Luncheon April 22, 2022 in 

Temecula, California. 
 
Recommended Action 
 
That the Board authorize and approve, in advance, Directors' attendance to the 
Southern California Water Coalition Quarterly Luncheon on April 22, 2022 in Temecula, 
California 

22



E 
M E M O 

 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM: David Shank, Assistant General Manager/CFO 
DATE: March 28, 2022 
SUBJECT: Financial Plan Update  
 
 
Purpose 
 
The 2017 Financial Plan’s adopted rates and charges go through calendar year 2022.  
Therefore, a new plan and adopted rates and charges will need to be in place before 
January 1, 2023.  Initiating the process now will ensure the District is able to meet this 
timeline.   
 
Summary 
 
The process for developing a financial plan that includes adopted rates and charges is 
involved and long.  It is envisioned that this process will take between 6 and 8 months to 
complete.  In December, Bartle Wells Associates (BWA) was selected as the rate 
consultant for this effort.   
 
Over the past several months, the Fiscal Policy and Insurance Committee met with BWA 
to discuss goals and objectives of the updated financial plan.  Some of the goals identified 
by the Committee include reviewing target reserve levels, wastewater rate structure and 
billing methodology for residential customers, and recycled water cost allocations.  In 
addition, District staff have been providing financial and customer use data to BWA to 
enable the development of a model that provides detailed revenue and expenditure 
projections.  
 
Once the financial model that serves as the basis for the financial plan is developed, 
public and Board discussions will begin.  The Committee intends for this process to be 
both collaborative and transparent to ensure the District’s future financial sustainability.   
   
Recommended Action 
 
This item is for discussion only.  No action is required. 

23



F 
M E M O 

 
 
TO:  Board of Directors  
FROM:   Noelle Denke, Public Affairs Specialist 
DATE:   March 28, 2022 
SUBJECT:  100th Anniversary Event 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Purpose 
 
Our district will be 100 years old on June 5, 2022. We are planning a celebration for an 
open-to-the-public event on Saturday, June 4, 2022 from 11 a.m. to 3 p.m. 
  
Summary 
 
We will open our grounds to the public, inviting them into “the yard.” Here is some of 
what is planned: 
 

 A petting zoo 
 Horse-drawn wagon rides around our property 
 Fallbrook High School cheerleaders will be performing 
 Turn-of-the-century water wagon 
 Vintage tractor 
 Western theme & decorations 
 Deejay playing country music 
 National Anthem performance by Stephani Baxter 
 20-foot x 40-foot flag hoisted on our new crane 
 Fallbrook Sheriff’s Department will have a booth and activity 
 North County Fire will bring an antique fire truck and interact with the community 
 Vintage Car Club 
 Shafters Car Club (hot rod and muscle cars) 
 Food trucks: Firehouse Brew & Cue and Cali Food Truck (taco truck) 
 Interactive water labs for kids through the San Diego County Office of Ed 
 Giveaway: reusable water bottles with 100th anniversary logo 
 Our vehicles will be staffed so kids can sit inside and take pictures 

 
 

 
 
 

 

24



G 

This page intentionally left blank. 

25



H 
M E M O 

 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM: Jack Bebee, General Manager 

Paula de Sousa, General Counsel 
DATE: March 28, 2022 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing Regarding Redistricting of Division Boundaries for FPUD 

Board of Directors 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Purpose 
 
Conduct second public hearing regarding redistricting of division boundaries for the Board 
of Directors. 
 
Summary 
 
Every ten years, agencies with by-division election systems must use new census data 
to review and, if needed, redraw electoral division lines to reflect how local populations 
have changed. This process, called redistricting, ensures all divisions comply with both 
state and federal law. 

Public utilities districts are governed by Public Utilities Code section 15501 et seq., which 
provides that a district divided into divisions shall be divided so that the divisions shall be 
as nearly as equal in population as may be.  (Pub. Util. Code § 15961.6(b)).  Public utility 
districts divided into divisions are statutorily required to adjust their division boundaries 
by resolution after each federal decennial census. (Pub. Util. Code § 15963; Elec. Code, 
§ 22000(a).)  The District’s Board of Directors is responsible for adjusting the District’s 
division boundaries.   

The primary goal of redistricting is to have the substantially equal populations in each 
division.  However, perfect distribution is impractical and some deviation is tolerable, or 
even necessary, based on certain secondary considerations that the Board may consider, 
such as: (a) topography, (b) geography, (c) cohesiveness, (d) contiguity, (e) integrity, 
(f) compactness, and (g) communities of interest.  In addition, division boundaries must 
comply with the U.S. Constitution, California Constitution, and the Federal Voting Rights 
Act (52 U.S.C. § 10301, as amended). 

Prior to approving a new division map, the Board must receive comments on the 
redistricting plan prior to adoption by holding at least two open and noticed public 
hearings—one for public comment on the plan and one at the time of adoption.  The 
purpose of this item is to hold a second public hearing to receive additional public input.   

At its December 13, 2021 meeting, the Board directed District staff to prepare a 
redistricting proposal for the Board’s consideration at the public hearings, with support 
from BB&K.   

26



Analysis of Current Divisions / Redistricting Proposal 

The District’s current division boundaries were adopted in 2016 as the result of a 
settlement in a legal action under the California Voting Rights Act of 2001 (Cal. Elec. 
Code § 14025 et seq.).  Under the terms of the settlement, the District converted from an 
at-large election system to a by-division election system and adopted division maps 
compliant with state and federal law, including the Federal Voting Rights Act. 

Analysis of the District’s current division boundaries, adjusted for the 2020 Census data, 
shows the divisions remain population-balanced. The District’s population is 34,738. The 
ideal division population is one-fifth of that number, or 6,948.  

Determining population balance is done by measuring the spread, or deviation, between 
the least populated division and the greatest populated division.  Deviations of 10% or 
less are generally considered acceptable under U.S. Supreme Court rulings on the equal 
population standard under the U.S. Constitution.  

The current population of Division 3 is under the ideal at -6.08%  while Division 1 is over 
the ideal at 3.56%.  Combined, those deviations bring the District’s current total deviation 
to 9.64%. As such, the division boundaries are not required to be adjusted to achieve a 
population balance of less than a 10% deviation. 

Another consideration is the distribution of minority voters throughout the District, and 
whether there is a possibility of creating a majority-minority voting division pursuant to the 
Federal Voting Rights Act. This analysis involves reviewing the ethnicity demographics 
from the census data, specifically citizens of voting age population (CVAP).  

Upon review of the District’s CVAP data, the existing Division 3 is a majority-minority 
Hispanic division (a division in which an identified minority comprises the majority of 
voting age population). 

Based on the above analysis of population and demographics, the Board may consider 
re-adopting the District’s current division boundaries as the District’s redistricting plan for 
2022.  The current division boundaries are shown in Attachment 1.  Detailed demographic 
information is available on the District’s website. 

At the first public hearing held February 28, 2022, the Board requested Best Best & 
Krieger (BB&K), serving as the District’s demographic consultant, prepare draft map(s) 
that examine the possibility of creating a second majority-minority voting division and 
conduct a public workshop to further engage the community in the redistricting process. 
The District held the first of two community workshops on March 17, 2022 which was 
attended by approximately 15 people. Community members received an informational 
report on the redistricting process and were shown online tools that may be used to draw 
and submit maps for the Board’s consideration. A second workshop is scheduled for 
March 24, 2022 to review draft map options.  

Subsequent to the first public hearing and first community workshop, BB&K prepared one 
draft map option (Option 1), and one option has been received from a member of the 

27



public (Public Option A). Consultant drawn maps are labeled numerically, while publicly 
submitted maps are labeled alphabetically. Each of the maps is summarized below and 
complete demographic analysis of the maps are shown in Attachment 2. Further, an 
online tool for examining the maps in greater detail, with full search and other geolocation 
services enabled, may be found at the following link: 

FPUD ONLINE MAPS 

Map Option 1 

 Is population balanced with a deviation of 5.44%, lower than the existing deviation 
of 9.64% 

 Draws two majority-minority Hispanic voting divisions (Divisions 2 and 3) 
 Preserves the core of existing divisions 
 Preserves most of the downtown community of interest in a single Division 

(Division 2) 
 Creates compact, contiguous voting divisions 
 Uses major streets and boundaries for natural division boundary lines 
 Defers a small population of voters (1,511) from a 2022 voting cycle to a 2024 

voting cycle, a delay of two years 

Map Option A 

 Was submitted by a member of the public  
 Is not population balanced, with a deviation in excess of 10% (22.4%) 

o Used a preliminary mapping tool that included excess population beyond 
the District’s existing boundaries. Should the Board express an interest in 
examining Map Option A further, staff will work with the author to make 
population adjustments while preserving the spirit of the map’s configuration 

 Shares some characteristics with the existing map, although the core of Divisions 
2-4 are changed significantly 

 Division 1 remains untouched 
 Draws one majority-minority Hispanic voting division (Division 3) 
 Like Option 1, preserves most of the downtown community of interest in a single 

Division (Division 3) 
 Defers a significant population of voters (6,946) from a 2022 voting cycle to a 2024 

voting cycle, a delay of 2 years 

Online Mapping Tool  

In addition to the community workshops, the District has developed an online mapping 
tool to allow the public to draw and submit their own maps.  Any additional maps submitted 
by the public will be added to the online map link for viewing, with further analysis shared 
at the next public hearing.  

 

28

https://www.google.com/maps/d/u/0/viewer?mid=1pu0Tk_adc2UB2j2hgAvKXIQS7e9TNdzT&ll=33.402493438080995%2C-117.21549998230806&z=17


 

Next Steps 

Following this public hearing and Board direction to staff (if any) regarding the redistricting 
proposal, the Board will hold a third public hearing at which it can consider adoption of a 
final redistricting plan.  The District must complete its redistricting process by April 17, 
2022 and provide the new division information to the Registrar of Voters by that date.  

Recommended Action 
 

1. Receive a report from District staff on the redistricting proposal and permissible 
criteria to be considered to redraw division boundaries; 
 

2. Review Draft maps and provide direction to prepare revised maps, if appropriate, 
to be considered at the next public hearing; and  
 

3. Conduct a public hearing to receive public input on division boundaries. 
 

  

29



Attachment 1 

Current / Proposed Division Boundaries 

 

 

 

30



 

 

Attachment 2 
Draft Map Options and Demographic Data 

  

31



 

 

Map Option1 

 Division 

 Total 

Population 

 Raw 

Population 

 % 

Population  Latino 

 CVAP*19 

Total 

 CVAP19 

NL** 

White 

 CVAP19 

NL Black 

 CVAP 

Hispanic 

 CVAP19 

Not 

Hispanic 

 CVAP19 

NL 

AIAN*** 

 CVAP19 

NL ASIAN 

 CVAP19 

NL 

Hawaiian 

 CVAP19 

NL Other 

1 7,135           187 2.70% 2,284         4,802         3,606         37            830          3,995         38            213          -          56            

2 7,068           120 1.73% 4,567         4,402         1,926         55            2,270      2,132         42            109          -          24            

3 6,888           -60 -0.86% 5,398         2,804         1,024         218          1,421      1,383         -          24            28            46            

4 6,890           -58 -0.83% 2,705         5,153         3,193         169          1,621      3,571         7              111          51            2              

5 6,757           -191 -2.74% 1,711         5,170         3,891         35            982          4,146         26            128          -          -          

Total 34,738         

Ideal 6,948           Deviation 5.44%

*CVAP = Citien Voting Age Population 

**NL = Non Latino

***AIAN = American Indian Alaskan Native

32



 

 

Public Map Option A 

 Division  

 Total 

Population 

 Raw 

Population 

 % 

Population  Latino 

 CVAP*19 

Total 

 CVAP19 

NL** 

White 

 CVAP19 

NL Black 

 CVAP 

Hispanic 

 CVAP19 

Not 

Hispanic 

 CVAP19 

NL 

AIAN*** 

 CVAP19 

NL ASIAN 

 CVAP19 

NL 

Hawaiian 

 CVAP19 

NL Other 

1 6,791          -157 -2.25% 1,771         4,644         3,745         32            669          4,020         8              123          -          56            

2 7,527          579 8.34% 5,544         3,469         1,323         322          1,638      1,813         -          30            28            41            

3 7,397          449 6.47% 4,985         4,478         1,868         7              2,425      2,034         45            120          -          30            

4 7,059          111 1.60% 2,823         5,208         3,306         107          1,506      3,738         34            227          51            1              

5 5,964          -984 -14.16% 1,543         4,532         3,398         46            886          3,621         26            84            -          -          

Total 34,738        

Ideal 6,948          Deviation 22.50%

*CVAP = Citizen Voting Age Population 

**NL = Non Latino

***AIAN = American Indian Alaskan Native 

33



 

 

Attachment 3 

Notices of Public Hearing 

34



FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 

To Receive Public Input and Proposals Regarding  

Board of Director Division Boundaries 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that, pursuant to California Elections Code Section 22001, 

the Board of Directors of Fallbrook Public Utility District will hold a public hearing to 

receive input regarding potential redistricting of Director divisions. 

Public Hearings are scheduled as follows: 

DATE:  March 28, 2022   

TIMES:  4:00 p.m.   

LOCATION:      990 East Mission Road, Fallbrook, CA 92028 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82003172211?pwd=UU10YWltMkVwW
GVaUFNkQnA2bHA4Zz09  

  

The public is invited to attend and/or submit information regarding their Communities of 

Interest, and proposed division boundaries for the 2021 redistricting process. Draft maps 

will not be available until census-block level 2020 U.S. census data is released. 

 

Questions or input may also be emailed to: leckert@fpud.com  

Complete redistricting information can be found at https://www.fpud.com/redistricting-process  

Dated: March 17, 2022 

By: _/s/ Lauren Eckert__ ____________ 

 Executive Assistant/Board Secretary 

 
 

35

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82003172211?pwd=UU10YWltMkVwWGVaUFNkQnA2bHA4Zz09
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82003172211?pwd=UU10YWltMkVwWGVaUFNkQnA2bHA4Zz09
mailto:leckert@fpud.com
https://www.fpud.com/redistricting-process


DISTRITO DE SERVICIOS PÚBLICOS DE FALLBROOK 

JUNTA DE DIRECTORES 

AVISO DE AUDIENCIA PÚBLICA 

Para recibir comentarios y propuestas del público respecto a 

los límites de división de la Junta de Directores 

POR EL PRESENTE SE DA AVISO que, de acuerdo con la Sección 22001 del Código 

Electoral de California, la Junta de Directores del Distrito de Servicios Públicos de 

Fallbrook celebrará una audiencia pública para recibir comentarios en cuanto a la posible 

redistribución de las divisiones de los Directores. 

Las audiencias públicas están programadas como sigue: 

28 de marzo de 2022 

4:00 p.m. 

FECHA: 

HORA: 

UBICACIÓN: 990 East Mission Road, Fallbrook, CA 92028 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82003172211?pwd=UU10YWltMkVwW
GVaUFNkQnA2bHA4Zz09  

El público está invitado a asistir y/o presentar información respecto a sus Comunidades 

de Interés y límites propuestos de la división para el proceso de redistribución de 2021. 

No habrá mapas del borrador disponibles hasta dar a conocer los datos del censo de los 

EE.UU.A. de 2020 a nivel de bloques censales. 

Cualquier pregunta o comentario también podrá ser enviado por correo electrónico a: 
leckert@fpud.com  

Se podrá encontrar información completa de la redistribución en 
https://www.fpud.com/redistricting-process 

Fechado: 17 de marzo de 2022 

Por: _/s/ Lauren Eckert_____ _____________ 

Asistente Ejecutivo/Secretaria de la Junta 

36

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82003172211?pwd=UU10YWltMkVwWGVaUFNkQnA2bHA4Zz09
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/82003172211?pwd=UU10YWltMkVwWGVaUFNkQnA2bHA4Zz09
mailto:leckert@fpud.com
https://www.fpud.com/redistricting-process


San Diego County Water Authority (SDCWA) Report    March 2022 

 

1. MWD Issues 

 

MWD had appealed the trial court decision on the award of legal fees for the rate cases that have 

settled and resulted in refunds to SDCWA for the Water Stewardship Rate being charged on 

transportation of QSA supplies.  The appellate court ruled in favor of SDCWA and awarded $13 

million in legal fees to SDCWA. 

 

The parties also filed for a summary adjudication on the remaining issues.  The primary issue being 

the requirement for MWD to pay SDCWA an offsetting benefit for QSA water wheeled through 

MWD’s infrastructure.  A copy of the motions filed by each party are public and available if a Board 

member is interested.   

 

2. SDCWA Finances and Rates 

SDCWA has prepared a number of meetings with Member Agencies to develop an updated rate 

schedule.  The General Manager has indicated the goal of the new rate structure is to increase 

SDCWA recovery of fixed costs.  It is anticipated the new rate structure will be developed over the 

next year and brought forward for Board approval. 

SDCWA also recently provided a projection that they anticipate their costs being less than MWD 

within 10 years per the attached.  The graph shows 3032, but that is a typo and is supposed to be 

2032. 

 

A. Key Upcoming Issues 

 

Some key issues for the upcoming year include: 

 Drought messaging and implementation of any additional mandatory drought restrictions 

by the state depending on the rainfall in the remainder of the winter. 

 Fully understanding the use of consultants and lobbyist within San Diego County. 

 Evaluating options to mitigate the SDCWA high rate forecast and more fully estimating a 

realistic potential low end demand projection. 

 Getting an update on the next phase of the regional conveyance study that was approved 

by the Board and developing a plan to fund millions in additional project work if the 

project continues to be pursued. 

37



OPINION

Opinion: Water Authority Should Sell Surplus Supplies to
Reduce Rates

by Dave Baxter and Hayden Hamilton 

2 weeks ago

The San Diego County Water Authority upgraded the All-American Canal in Imperial County to reduce reliance on the Metropolitan Water

District. Courtesy of the authority

Over the next several years, San Diego area residents will face a growing threat to their quality of life — soaring

water costs from the San Diego County Water Authority the likes of which they have never seen before.  

According to its latest long-range �nancing plan, the Water Authority is set to raise water costs on San Diegans

by 50% over the next �ve years beginning next year. This comes after years of escalating hikes that have

averaged 8% a year over the past decade.  

These runaway increases have had a deep and wide impact on the people of San Diego

County, especially those with low incomes, businesses, as well as our vital agricultural

economy, which has been devastated, forcing many farming operations out of business.  

The ballooning costs are largely the result of decisions made years ago by the Water Authority to spend billions

of dollars on water storage and recycling projects and on long-term contracts to purchase water.  

Times of San Diego Uses Cookies

This website, like most media sites, uses small �les called cookies to anonymously customize the advertising that

you see. Learn more about how we use cookies in our cookie policy.

OK

38

https://timesofsandiego.com/
https://timesofsandiego.com/category/opinion/
https://timesofsandiego.com/author/dave-baxter/
https://timesofsandiego.com/author/hayden-hamilton/
https://i0.wp.com/timesofsandiego.com/wp-content/uploads/2015/08/Opinion-Logo.jpg?ssl=1
https://i0.wp.com/timesofsandiego.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/10/All-American-Canal.jpg?ssl=1
http://sdcwa.org/
https://timesofsandiego.com/privacy-policy/#


As Water Authority Board Chair Gary Croucher wrote last month, these projects were designed to boost local

supplies and lessen our region’s dependence on imported water following severe shortages in the early 1990s .  

But while the Water Authority was pursuing these costly projects and contracts — and tacking on the costs to

everyone’s monthly water bills — San Diegans were simultaneously answering the authority’s call to conserve

water.

They tore out their lawns, planted drought-tolerant landscaping, installed low-�ow shower heads and toilets,

and took other actions, which have signi�cantly reduced how much water our region consumes. In fact, San

Diego’s regional demand for water has decreased 40% since the early 1990s. 

While water conservation is, of course, good, the bad news is our region now has far more water than it needs —

and water customers across the region are paying for it through rising water bills.  

Unfortunately, the Water Authority has been slow to adapt to this reduced demand and bring water rates under

control. 

Today, the Water Authority is obligated through “take or pay” contracts with Poseidon, the company that

operates the desalination plant in Carlsbad, and with the Imperial Irrigation District to purchase their water

whether it is used or not. Many water of�cials throughout San Diego have been urging the Water Authority to

sell its excess water to outside water districts, but efforts so far have been anemic.  

The result — ratepayers are stuck paying for water they don’t use and will continue to do so for years to come

unless the Water Authority gets serious.  

Dave Baxter is president of the Fallbrook Public Utility District board of directors. Hayden Hamilton is
president of the Rainbow Municipal Water District board of directors

Times of San Diego Uses Cookies

This website, like most media sites, uses small �les called cookies to anonymously customize the advertising that

you see. Learn more about how we use cookies in our cookie policy.

OK

39

https://timesofsandiego.com/opinion/2022/01/28/water-may-cost-more-now-but-30-years-ago-san-diego-almost-ran-out/
https://www.iid.com/
https://www.fpud.com/
https://www.rainbowmwd.com/
https://timesofsandiego.com/privacy-policy/#


© 2022 Times of San Diego LLC.

Proudly powered by Newspack by Automattic

Do Not Sell My Personal Information

Times of San Diego Uses Cookies

This website, like most media sites, uses small �les called cookies to anonymously customize the advertising that

you see. Learn more about how we use cookies in our cookie policy.

OK

40

https://newspack.pub/
https://timesofsandiego.com/privacy-policy/#


41



Notes on Tish Berge Commentary 
 

            March 2022 

The following analysis was prepared in connection with the Commentary by Assistant General Manager 
Tish Berge, Commentary misleads water ratepayers. 

 

The data sources used to develop this forecast include:  

• CWA adopted Long-range Financing Plan (2021) 
• MWD’s Board presentation on Delta Conveyance (March 2020) 
• MWD’s adopted 2020 UWMP 
• MWD’s Recent and Planned CIP Expenditures by Program (MWD’s 2/22/2022 Finance and 

Insurance Committee meeting, item #2a – slide 10): 
 

 

The projected MWD rates are conservatively assessed based on: 

• MWD’s 10-year forecast baseline (February 2022) 
• Inclusion of requested 81 additional FTEs (1% additional in ’23) 
• Partial funding of Delta Conveyance 
• High forecast also includes a one-time 10% decrease in water sales to match UWMP baseline 

forecast and a 1% higher annual inflation 

$0

$1,000

$2,000

$3,000

$4,000

$5,000

$6,000

2022 2027 2032 2037

Co
st

 p
er

 A
cr

e 
Fo

ot
 (A

ll-
In

) San Diego County Water Authority
High-Low rate forecast reflects payoff of 

historical capital investments and 
transition to a R&R capital cycle, 

Metropolitan Water District of Southern California
High-Low rate forecast trajectory reflects significant 
identified capital needs, both new (Delta + RRWP) 

MWD High

MWD Low

SDCWA 
High
SDCWA 
Low

42

https://www.sdcwa.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/10/LRFP2021Adopted.pdf
https://bda.mwdh2o.com/Board%20Archives/2020/03%20-%20March/Presentations/03092020%20FI%206a%20Presentation.pdf
https://www.mwdh2o.com/media/21641/2020-urban-water-management-plan-june-2021.pdf
https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=10576735&GUID=0DB127DF-E739-4C3C-825B-8495CE3F0B49
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fmwdh2o.legistar.com%2Fgateway.aspx%3FM%3DF%26ID%3D35e3a613-fae3-4e77-944c-91678d9f0fa7.pdf&data=04%7C01%7CTBerge%40sdcwa.org%7C6fcdc06a219140d0722108da05e1a2e1%7Cda496ace2ca24353a5b0f0fab74ff5d4%7C0%7C0%7C637828764804509230%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=%2FVvqx%2FvuVgR76%2B%2FEzKUzrXgGAksduxCgE30IRt0YL3U%3D&reserved=0


3/18/2022

1

Fallbrook Public Utility District
Engineering and Operations FY22

Board Meeting Mar 2022

Water PAYGO CIP FY22

2

43



3/18/2022

2

Water SMRCUP CIP FY22

3

Wastewater System CIP FY22

4

44



3/18/2022

3

Total PAYGO CIP FY22

5

Total CIP FY22

6

45



3/18/2022

4

Wastewater Treatment

• Wastewater System Violations

• Reclamation Plant PMs Completed

• Energy Cost per MG

• Recycled Water – Time Out of Service

7

Reclamation Plant Recycled Water

Wastewater Treatment System 
Regulatory Compliance

8

Analyses 
performed: 
Daily
Monthly 
Quarterly 
Semi-annually 
Annually

SRWQCB 
Compliance:
NPDES
WDR

46



3/18/2022

5

Reclamation Plant –
Preventative Maintenance Work Orders

9

Equipment Service/Inspection Site Maintenance

Reclamation Plant –
Energy Usage (KWh/MG Treated)

Formula =
Total Plant Energy Demand

MG Treated Flow

10

47



3/18/2022

6

Recycled Water – Time out of Service (Hours)

11

*

Water Operations

Regulatory Compliance

Preventative Maintenance Work Orders

CUP Deliveries

12

48



3/18/2022

7

Water System Regulatory Compliance 

13

• UV Plant 
Operation 

• Routine 
Sampling

Water Preventative Maintenance Work Orders

14

49



3/18/2022

8

15

CUP Deliveries

Meter Services

Meter Exchange 
Program

16

50



3/18/2022

9

Meter Exchange

17

Wastewater 
Collections

Total Wastewater Spilled

Non-Recovered Wastewater Spilled

Odor Complaints

18

51



3/18/2022

10

Wastewater Collections
Sewer Overflows

19

Wastewater Collections
Wastewater Spilled

20

52



3/18/2022

11

Reclamation Plant & Wastewater Collections
Odor Complaints

21

Wastewater
Collections – Preventative Maintenance Work Orders

22

53



3/18/2022

12

23

Construction/Maintenance
• Efforts continue in replacing valves with the greatest impact on water loss 

and customer outages during large main breaks. 

• With new valves, crews will be capable of shutting down smaller controlled 

areas faster, impacting fewer customers while losing less water and 

completing repairs sooner.

• Our goal is to replace 100 valves per year. FY22, 52 valves have been 

replaced through February 2022. We currently have 6821 valves in the 

system with 193 known to be broken.

Main Line Valve Exercise Program

24

• Improve reliability

• Reduce impact of 
planned and 
emergency shutdowns

54



3/18/2022

13

Main Line Valves Replaced

25

Rolling Total Broken Valves (4” and above)

26

55



3/18/2022

14

Planned Water Outages > 4 Hours
# of Customers Affected

27

Unplanned Water Outages > 4 Hours
# of Customers Affected

28

56



M E M O 
 
 

TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM: David Shank, Assistant General Manager/CFO 
DATE: March 28, 2022 
SUBJECT: Financial Summary Report – February 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Purpose 
 
Provide an overview of changes in the District’s financial position. 
 
Summary 
 
The graph below shows the District’s year-to-date Revenues, Expenditures and Net 
revenues. 
   

 
 
Revenues are on budget while expenditures continue to diverge from the Budget 
levels.  These trends are driving net revenues to be better than budgeted.  Non-
operating revenues are higher than budget driven by the receipt of the second refund 
check issued by the San Diego County Water Authority (SDCWA) and grant funds 
from the State Arrearages Program.  With PayGo CIP expected to ramp up this 
spring, net revenues are expected to trend towards budget levels.  Water sales are 
expected to continue to trend under budgeted levels.  Staff are carefully tracking the 

57



District’s financial position.  After adjusting for expected State reimbursement, Net 
Revenue is trending better than Budget largely due to CIP underspending.   
 
The graph below shows the District’s bank holdings reported in the Treasurer’s 
Report at the end of the current and prior month. 
 

 
 
Overall the District’s financial holdings decreased driven by two scheduled debt 
service payments.  The District’s PARS investments reflect recent market volatility.  
Overall these investments continue to perform in line with the capital markets.     
 
Recommended Action 
 
This item is for discussion only.  No action is required. 

58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



 

M E M O 
 
 

TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM: David Shank, Assistant General Manager/CFO 
DATE: March 28, 2022 
SUBJECT: Budget Status Report for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Purpose 
Provide a Budget Status Report (BSR) to the Board. 
 
Summary 
The BSR shows the District’s financial performance compared to the budget for the month 
of February, Year-to-Date and the annual budgeted amount.     
 
Total revenues year-to-date are under budget by 3.1%, which is largely due to the lower 
than projected water and wastewater operating revenues.  Water sales remain below 
budget due to lower than budgeted water demands.  This month water sales were in line 
with budgeted levels.  Despite this month, the year to date water sales are 11.2% below 
budget.  Spring weather and potential for water supply restrictions will be the driving 
forces behind water demands this spring.  With only a few remaining months in the current 
fiscal year, water sales are not expected to recover keeping sales well under budgeted 
levels.   
 
Non-operating revenues are slightly over budget driven by the receipt of the second 
refund check issued by the San Diego County Water Authority (SDCWA) and the grant 
funds from the State Arrearages Program.  These one-time funds are pushing the 
District’s non-operating revenues higher than budget levels, while the recurring revenues 
are in line with the Budget.  Total non-operating revenues are expected to be higher than 
budget levels due to the one-time revenues.   
 
The District’s year-to-date total expenditures are under budget due to the lower than 
budgeted water purchases and operating expenses.  Water operating expenses are 
expected to remain under budget due to the lower than budgeted production at the Santa 
Margarita Groundwater Treatment Plant.  Wastewater and administrative services are 
expected to trend towards budget as the year progresses.             
 
Total revenue is $26,098,666 or 3.1% under budget and total expenditures are 
$21,259,122 or 4.7% under budget.  PAYGO CIP expenditures are 40% under budget 
but are expected to trend towards Budget levels.  Adjusting for expected State Loan 
proceeds, the District’s financial results are above Budget levels. 
 
Recommended Action 
This item is for discussion only.  No action is required.  

68



 

 

 

69



Monthly Budget Report for February Favorable Variance Shown as a positive number

Actual Budget Actual Budget Variance % Budget Remaining Balance %
Operating Revenues: Year remaining 33.3%

Water Sales 1,026,995       1,106,053         11,601,614        12,875,847       (1,274,233)       -9.9% 18,695,785        7,094,171                37.9%
Water Meter Service Charges 673,771          692,367            5,194,941          5,231,219         (36,278)            -0.7% 8,000,687          2,805,746                35.1%
Wastewater Service Charges 548,255          508,783            4,101,424          4,434,053         (332,630)          -7.5% 6,469,183          2,367,760                36.6%
Recycled Water Revenues 47,249            52,809              499,747             744,292            (244,545)          -32.9% 1,175,173          675,426                   57.5%
Other Operating Revenue -                 917                   -                     7,333                (7,333)              -100.0% 11,000               11,000                     100.0%
    Total Operating Revenue 2,296,271       2,360,929         21,397,725        23,292,744       (1,895,019)       -8.1% 34,351,829        12,954,103              37.7%

Non Operating Revenues:
Water Capital Improvement Charge 115,596          120,280            959,091             962,239            (3,149)              -0.3% 1,443,359          484,269                   33.6%
Wastewater Capital Improvement Charge 98,903            98,390              788,309             787,118            1,191               0.2% 1,180,678          392,368                   33.2%
Property Taxes 97,432            141,292            1,413,256          1,374,848         38,409             2.8% 2,122,467          709,210                   33.4%
Water Standby/Availability Charge 8,431              7,009                122,180             124,532            (2,352)              -1.9% 204,000             81,821                     40.1%
Water/Wastewater Capacity Charges -                 7,183                134,121             57,467              76,654             133.4% 86,200               (47,921)                    -55.6%
Portfolio Interest 7,408              10,304              157,329             82,434              74,895             90.9% 123,651             (33,678)                    -27.2%
Pumping Capital Improvement Charge 874                 2,730                9,348                 21,837              (12,489)            -57.2% 32,756               23,408                     71.5%
Federal Interest Rate Subsidy -                 -                    51,292               49,968              1,324               2.6% 97,977               46,685                     47.6%
SDCWA Refund/Covid Relief Grant* 151,343          -                    776,594             -                    776,594           NA -                     (776,594)                  NA
Facility Rents 21,897            18,750              174,264             150,000            24,264             16.2% 225,000             50,736                     22.5%
Fire Hydrant Service Fees 9,175              -                    18,313               -                    18,313             NA -                     (18,313)                    NA
Other Non-Operating Revenues 2,586              2,500                96,845               20,000              76,845             384.2% 30,000               (66,845)                    -222.8%
    Total Non Operating Revenues 513,646          408,438            4,700,941          3,630,443         1,070,498        29.5% 5,546,087          845,146                   15.2%

    Total Revenues 2,809,916       2,769,366         26,098,666        26,923,187       (824,521)          -3.1% 39,897,916        13,799,250              34.6%

Expenditures
Purchased Water Expense 948,655          559,385            8,460,311          8,529,590         69,279             0.8% 11,547,729        3,087,417                26.7%
Water Services** 362,619          473,550            2,651,568          3,224,964         573,396           17.8% 5,355,939          2,704,371                50.5%
Wastewater Services** 303,254          267,037            2,274,591          2,269,811         (4,781)              -0.2% 3,471,475          1,196,884                34.5%
Recycled Water Services** 37,486            40,554              252,730             344,709            91,979             26.7% 527,202             274,472                   52.1%
Administrative Services** 478,457          531,066            4,257,687          4,514,062         256,375           5.7% 6,903,859          2,646,172                38.3%
    Total Operating Expenses 2,130,469       1,871,591         17,896,888        18,883,136       986,248           5.2% 27,806,204        9,909,316                35.6%

Debt Service Expenses
SMCUP SRF 974,071          1,038,424         974,071             1,038,424         64,353             6.2% 1,038,424          64,353                     6.2%
Red Mountain SRF -                 -                    395,851             395,851            -                   0.0% 395,851             -                           0.0%
WW Rev Refunding Bonds 309,118          309,118            1,729,884          1,729,884         -                   0.0% 1,729,884          -                           0.0%
QECB Solar Debt -                 -                    262,429             262,429            -                   0.0% 521,312             258,883                   49.7%
Total Debt Service 1,283,189       1,347,542         3,362,234          3,426,587         64,353             1.9% 3,685,471          323,236                   8.8%

Total Expenses 3,413,658       3,219,133         21,259,122        22,309,723       1,050,602        4.7% 31,491,674        10,232,552              32.5%

(603,742)        (449,767)           4,839,544          4,613,464         226,081           4.9% 8,406,242          3,566,698                42.4%
Capital Investment
Capital Investment

Construction Expenditures 483,564          861,076            2,380,433          3,973,197         1,592,764        40.1% 7,288,000          4,907,567                67.3%
SMCUP Expenditures*** 565,784          -                    6,060,127          8,450,000         2,389,873        28.3% 8,450,000          2,389,873                28.3%
SRF Loan Proceeds Draw (Capital Project Funds)**** (319,211)        -                    (4,739,739)         (8,450,000)        (3,710,261)       43.9% (8,450,000)         (3,710,261)               43.9%

Net Revenue/(Loss) (1,333,878)     (1,310,843)        1,138,723          640,267            498,457           77.9% 1,118,242          (20,481)                    -1.8%

*Includes SDCWA Refund of $625,250.63 and California Water Arrearage Payment Program grant of $151,343.14
**Includes share of $100,000 PARS transfer.
***CIP expenditures related to the SMCUP have been updated based upon contractor draw scheduled and are funded by SRF Loan proceeds.
****YTD Actual amount adjusted to reflect expected State Reimbursement for reporting purposes.

Year-To-Date Annual Budget

Net Revenue/(loss) From Operations and Debt Service

Current Month

70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



1

Lauren Eckert

From: Charley Wolk <bejoca@sbcglobal.net>
Sent: Friday, March 4, 2022 8:10 AM
To: Dave Baxter 1
Cc: Lauren Eckert
Subject: Re: Meeting with Jim Desmond - March 3, 2022

I approve Director Baxter's attendance at a meeting with Supervisor Desmond on Mar. 3. 
Charley Wolk    
 
On Thursday, March 3, 2022, 09:17:05 PM PST, Dave Baxter 1 <dbaxter@fpud.com> wrote:  
 
 
Hi Charlie! 
 
Don and I met with Jim Demond today regarding detachment. Would you mind approving my attendance to this meeting 
via a reply email? 
 
Thank you very much!!!  Have a terrific evening! 
 
Dave 
 
Dave Baxter 
Relevant Industrial 
Senior Managing Director - Western Region USA 
949.887.0090 Global Cell 

79



1

Lauren Eckert

From: Dave Baxter 1
Sent: Thursday, March 3, 2022 9:19 PM
To: Lauren Eckert
Cc: Don McDougal
Subject: Don McDougal’s Approval to attend meeting with Jim Desmond 

Hi Lauren! 
 
Don and I attended a meeting with Jim Desmond this afternoon.  
 
Please accept this email as approval for Don’s attendance.  
 
Thank you both very much! 
 
Dave 
 
Dave Baxter 
Relevant Industrial 
Senior Managing Director - Western Region USA 
949.887.0090 Global Cell 

80



1

Lauren Eckert

From: Dave Baxter 1
Sent: Tuesday, March 15, 2022 10:11 PM
To: Lauren Eckert
Subject: RE: Notice of Approval

Thank you Lauren! 
 
Charley is fully approved to attend the LAFCO meeting held on March 7.   
 
Please let me know if you should need anything. 
 
Dave 
 

From: Lauren Eckert <leckert@fpud.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, March 15, 2022 9:43 AM 
To: Dave Baxter 1 <dbaxter@fpud.com> 
Subject: Notice of Approval 
 
Good morning Dave,  
 
Charley attended a LAFCO meeting on 3/7 to comment on a CWA letter to LAFCO regarding the impact of water cost to 
the area growers. I’ve attached his Director’s report above. Can you please provide me with written approval for this 
meeting to include in the March packet? 
 
Thanks,  
Lauren  
 
Lauren Eckert 
Executive Assistant/Board Secretary 
 
Fallbrook Public Utility District 
990 East Mission Road 
Fallbrook, CA 92028 
(760) 999-2704 

 
 

81



1

Lauren Eckert

From: Charley Wolk <bejoca@sbcglobal.net>
Sent: Tuesday, March 22, 2022 12:21 PM
To: Lauren Eckert
Subject: Re: Approval to Attend LAFCO Meeting

Yes, I approve Dave's attendance to the LAFCO meeting on 3/7/22. 
Charley 
 
On Tuesday, March 22, 2022, 12:17:22 PM PDT, Lauren Eckert <leckert@fpud.com> wrote:  
 
 

Hi Charley,  

  

Dave Baxter also attended the LAFCO meeting on 3/7. He’s already approved your attendance via email, but I don’t see 
an email to me that you approved his. Can you please do so? 

  

Thank you,  

Lauren  

  

Lauren Eckert 

Executive Assistant/Board Secretary 

  

Fallbrook Public Utility District 

990 East Mission Road 

Fallbrook, CA 92028 

(760) 999-2704 

 

  

82



1

Lauren Eckert

From: Dave Baxter 1
Sent: Wednesday, March 23, 2022 9:26 AM
To: Lauren Eckert
Subject: Meeting approval for Charley Wolk on February 23, 2022

Good morning Lauren! 
 
Please allow this email to serve as approval for Charlie Wolk‘s meeting with Joe McKenzie on February 23, 2022. 
 
Thank you so much! 
 
Dave 
 
Dave Baxter 
Relevant Industrial 
Senior Managing Director - Western Region USA 
949.887.0090 Global Cell 

83



84



85



Don B. McDougal

Meeting with Supervisor Desmond and staff to discuss detachment
from the San Diego County Water Authority and it’s impact of Fallbrook & Rainbow.

Grand Tradition Estate and Gardens.

An informative discussion was conducted with Supervisor Desmond, Chief of Staff Darren

Gretler, Policy Advisor Hunter McDonald, Jack Beebe, Don McDougal and Dave Baxter.

A review of the issue was fully briefed and discussions followed determining a strategy

to move forward with the goal of influencing LAFCO to approve the request for detachment.

3/18/2022

Luncheon meeting at Grand Tradition Estate & Gardens in

Fallbrook

Thursday, March 3, 2022

86



The Administrative Code requires reports of conferences or meetings for which a director requests per 

diem or expense reimbursement.  Reports must be submitted to the secretary no later than one (1) week 

prior to the board meeting.   

 

Reports must be submitted before the District will pay per diem or reimbursement for the conference or 

meeting.  Reports are not required for board or committee meetings or meetings with board or committee 

officers, the general manager, or the general counsel. 

FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

DIRECTOR’S REPORT OF CONFERENCE / MEETING ATTENDANCE 

 
 

 

Director Name:  Dave Baxter  

 

Name & Location of Function:  Meeting with Jim Desmond, San Diego County Supervisor 

District 5  

 

  

 

    

 

Date(s) of Attendance:  March 3, 2022  

 

Purpose of Function:  Discussion around LAFCO & the Detachment Application presented  

 

Sponsoring Organization:    

 

Summary of Conference or Meeting: 

 

Don McDougal, Jack Bebee and I met with Jim and his staff to discuss details around the  

 

FPUD and RMUD application to detach from the San Diego County Water Authority.  

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

 

Director Signature:  Date:  3/22/2022  

87



The Administrative Code requires reports of conferences or meetings for which a director requests per 

diem or expense reimbursement.  Reports must be submitted to the secretary no later than one (1) week 

prior to the board meeting.   

 

Reports must be submitted before the District will pay per diem or reimbursement for the conference or 

meeting.  Reports are not required for board or committee meetings or meetings with board or committee 

officers, the general manager, or the general counsel. 

FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

DIRECTOR’S REPORT OF CONFERENCE / MEETING ATTENDANCE 

 
 

 

Director Name:  Dave Baxter  

 

Name & Location of Function:  LAFCO Monthly Board Meeting  

 

  

 

    

 

Date(s) of Attendance:  March 7, 2022  

 

Purpose of Function:  LAFCO Monthly Board Meeting – Speaking on behalf of the MSR  

 

Sponsoring Organization:  LAFCO  

 

Summary of Conference or Meeting: 

 

LAFCO Monthly Board Meeting where the MSR for our Community Benefit Program was   

 

discussed as an agenda item.  Speaking on behalf of FPUD, I shared how important the   

 

Community Benefit Program is to Fallbrook.  Further, that we did not understand why the   

 

Vote from last meeting to delay the approval of the MSR was approved.  Spoke against the   

 

influence SDCWA has on the MSR and its relevance to detachment.  

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

 

Director Signature:  Date:  March 22, 2022  

 

88



The Administrative Code requires reports of conferences or meetings for which a director requests per 

diem or expense reimbursement.  Reports must be submitted to the secretary no later than one (1) week 

prior to the board meeting.   

 

Reports must be submitted before the District will pay per diem or reimbursement for the conference or 

meeting.  Reports are not required for board or committee meetings or meetings with board or committee 

officers, the general manager, or the general counsel. 

FALLBROOK PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

DIRECTOR’S REPORT OF CONFERENCE / MEETING ATTENDANCE 

 
 

Dave Baxter 

Director Name:    

 

Name & Location of Function:  Council of Water Utilities  

 

  

 

    

 

Date(s) of Attendance:  March 15, 2022  

 

Purpose of Function:  Presentation by Alex Tardy, NOAA  

 

Sponsoring Organization:  Council of Water Utilities  

 

Summary of Conference or Meeting: 

 

Alex Tardy provided a report spanning Climate Conditions affecting So Cal – specifically the   

 

San Diego region.  In part, the high pressure system off the coast of Washington State continues  

 

remain in place resulting in storms which typically bring precipitation to So Cal not being able   

 

to effectively make the journey south.  Thus the drought will continue for a few years.  

 

 

Director Signature:  Date:  3/22/2022  

 

89



90


	2022-03-28 - Agenda
	A - Findings to Continue Holding Remote/Teleconference Committee Meetings Pursuant to Assembly Bill 361
	B - New Employee Announcement
	C - Approval of Minutes
	D - Consider Advance Approval to Attend Meetings
	E - Financial Plan Update
	F - 100th Anniversary Event
	G - Santa Margarita Groundwater Treatment Plant Update
	H - Public Hearing Regarding Redistricting of Division Boundaries for FPUD Board of Directors
	Reports
	SDCWA Representative Report
	Engineering & Operations Report
	Financial Summary Report
	Treasurer's Report
	Budget Status Report
	Warrant List
	Notice of Approval of Per Diem for Meetings Attended
	Director Comments/Reports on Meetings Attended




